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The following questions were submitted and answered during the CTE After Dark Information Session on December 14, 2022. Additional questions may be sent to Sarah.L.Wheeler@doe.nh.gov and a second FAQ will be published during the first week of January if necessary.
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RFA Process

Q:
Can people ask questions throughout the process or only during the 
Information Session?

A:
Because this is a competitive application, the Bureaus cannot answer individual questions. However, it is the intention of the Bureau administrators to publish a FAQ after the info session with the answers to questions submitted, If necessary, the Bureaus have the option to publish a 2nd FAQ in the future.

Q:
The RFA is intentionally written without a lot of requirements to allow for flexibility and innovation. Can the application be broad rather than specific 
since we can’t project too much for next September?

A:
The Bureau does not anticipate a complete, detailed program plan at application.

Q: 
Does the MOU have to be completed and signed? 

A:
No, a draft is acceptable. The intention of asking for an MOU is to ensure that the two partners are truly working together and have considered the division of responsibility and tasks.
CTE Component
Q:
Does this have to mirror the day time CTE Courses? 

A:
CTE After Dark does not need to mirror the day time CTE courses, but must meet the definition of a CTE program as defined in Perkins V, Section 3 because federal funds will be used for this program.

CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION.—The term ‘‘career and technical education’’ means organized educational activities that— 

(A) offer a sequence of courses that— 

(i) provides individuals with rigorous academic content and relevant technical knowledge and skills needed to prepare for further education and careers in current or emerging professions, which may include high-skill, high-wage, or in-demand industry sectors or occupations, which shall be, at the secondary level, aligned with the challenging State academic standards adopted by a State under section 1111(b)(1) of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965; 

(ii) provides technical skill proficiency or a recognized postsecondary credential, which may include an industry-recognized credential, a certificate, or an associate degree; and 

(iii) may include prerequisite courses (other than a remedial course) that meet the requirements of this subparagraph; 

(B) include competency-based, work-based, or other applied learning that supports the development of academic knowledge, higher-order reasoning and problem solving skills, work attitudes, employability skills, technical skills, and occupation-specific skills, and knowledge of all aspects of an industry, including entrepreneurship, of an individual; 

(C) to the extent practicable, coordinate between secondary and postsecondary education programs through programs of study, which may include coordination through articulation agreements, early college high school programs, dual or concurrent enrollment program opportunities, or other credit transfer agreements that provide postsecondary credit or advanced standing; and 

(D) may include career exploration at the high school level or as early as the middle grades (as such term is defined in section 8101 of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965).
Q:
Is there a required work-based learning components for adults?

A:
That is the preference and it is a regular requirement for CTE programs. 
Applicants are encouraged to check with their district’s insurance carrier to determine if liability insurance is available for adult students placed into work-based learning experiences. 

The Department is aware that Primex is currently providing coverage for adult students in Littleton under the school district policy. 
Applicants are also encouraged to consider other options for work-based learning experience including paid work-based experience and apprenticeships. 
For more assistance on work-based learning, please contact Nicole Levesque at the Bureau of Career Development at Nicole.M.Levesque@doe.nh.gov .

Q: 
Can it be a program that the applicant does not currently offer at the local CTE center?

A:
There is nothing in the RFA that requires an existing program to be used.

Q:
Is the expectation that all students in this program will complete a high school credential and receive an IRC within the one year of the pilot program?

A:
It is encouraged that applicants design a program that would allow a student to earn both a secondary and postsecondary credential within one year. The State recognizes that this may not be possible for all students depending on their available time to attend the program and existing credits.

Q:
How will there be enough time in the pilot for a student to complete both adult education and CTE?

A:
The pilot offers flexibility for program design and scheduling to meet the goal of the After Dark program. Applicants are encourage to consider alternative credit options under Ed 702.06, team teaching or an integrated teaching approach similar to the Integrated Education & Training option under WIOA, access to distance learning software available to adult education students and other innovative options.

Q:
Is a partnership with the community college a requirement?

A:
CTE programs are already required to have a partnership with the community college system, which may include articulation agreements, and have existing relationships. This includes relationships with apprenticeship programs, training providers and other postsecondary partners.

Q:
Can the applicant propose more than one career pathway?

A:
There is no restriction on proposing more than one career pathway.

Adult Education Component

Q:
Can the student earn a high school equivalency certificate instead of a high school diploma?

A:
Yes. Additionally, there may be English language learners that already have a secondary credential upon entry into the program. Goals for those students should align with adult education performance measures.

Q:
Could CTE After Dark meet the requirements of an Integrated Education & Training (IET)?

A:
Yes, the IET model includes three required components: adult education & literacy activities, workforce preparation activities and occupational skills training. The components must be provided concurrently and contextually using a single set of learning objectives. For more information about IET requirements, please contact Courtney Frederick at the Bureau of Adult Education at Courtney.L.Frederick@doe.nh.gov
Staffing

Q:
Could a grantee bring in an employer into the CTE After Dark program to provide an onsite work-based learning experience?

A:
Yes.

Q.
Could an employer serve as a CTE instructor?

A.
Under Adult Ed rules, this is fine. There is some precedent for industry trainers to teach in CTE courses, but there may need to be a “teacher of record” and/or alternative credentialing options. Please check with your SAU, existing CTE requirements or check with Jeff Beard at the Bureau of Career Development.

Q:
Can the applicant hire an Adult Ed teacher to teach the CTE component?

A:
The CTE instructor must meet the existing qualifications/credentials as established by the NH Department of Education, Bureau of Credentialing and the Bureau of Career Development as well as any local hiring policies.

Q:
Can the applicant have a community college instructor teach the CTE component?

A:
Only if the instructor is employed by the CTE center and meets the requirements as established for CTE teachers. The purpose of this pilot is to develop a partnership between the CTE center and adult education.

Q:
Can the applicant assign more than one counselor to the pilot?

A:
The minimum requirement is that one counselor be assigned to the pilot. The applicant may include additional counseling or other staff as appropriate to carry out the proposed program.

Q:
Does the Project Lead need to be already employed by the centers?

A:
No, but if the centers intend to hire for those positions, please include a job description and how the hiring entity will ensure that the Project Lead will demonstrate the required commitment to the program.

Q:
Does the RFA require a new staff person or could it be an existing CTE instructor?

A:
The RFA does not require or prohibit new staff or existing staff for the CTE After Dark pilot.

Funding

Q:
Will the pilot be eligible for federal funding?

A:
Yes, this pilot will use federal Perkin V funding and some federal WIOA, Title II funding and must meet the federal requirements. Some students may be funded under Adult Education State Funds including any dual-enrolled students because they are not eligible under adult education federal funding.

Q:
Is it possible to use braided funding?

A:
There is no restriction on using additional funds from other sources such as tuition from sending schools for CTE students, tuition from other WIOA programs such as WIOA Adult/Youth or Voc Rehab, tuition for incumbent workers through the Granite Invest program (goes to the employer for training) or from the employer. Applicants may also pursue private funding options or use existing CTE and/or adult education funds.


Braided funding is allowed, but not required.

Q:
What is the total funding for this pilot?

A:
There is a total of $100,000 available to be awarded to programs in rank order. This is not $100,000 per program
Q:
Is the district’s ability to run/fund this after completion included in the scoring rubric?

A:
No. The district does not have to submit a sustainability plan. As long as the pilot is successful, Adult Ed anticipates that funding an AE/CTE model will continue to be a priority. There is not a guarantee of CTE funding in the future.

Support from YouScience
Q: 
How much support will there be YouScience (NC3T) for the pilot?

A:
NC3T will make contact in the Spring of 2023 to help awardees make first 
decisions and they can help with gathering information. This may involve several phone calls or online meetings scheduled in coordination with the awardees. 

YouScience will pull together a team(s) of awardees over the summer and provide training over the course of two-three days. This is likely to be provided in an online format. 

When school starts, YouScience will conduct some in-person visits to programs to  gather
data on the pilot progress and to determine what would be helpful to replicate this process in the future. There may be some additional phone/email support.

YouScience’s role is to provide support and assistance, but they will not design the program for applicants.

Budget

Q:
Is transportation included in this funding?

A:
CTE students may be eligible based on existing legislation. Adults are not. Applicants are encouraged to consider braided funding to address barriers to attendance such as transportation.

Q:
Can the applicant provide food to students?

A:
Food cannot be purchase with After Dark pilot funding. Applicants are encouraged to access local grants for that purpose such as Walmart, Shaws and Dollar General.

Q:
What is considered “reasonable” for the budget?

A:
The budget must not include costs that are not directly related to the After Dark program. Costs should be similar to rates charged to other programs for similar objects or reflect the market rate.

TDD Access: Relay NH 711

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES
Released 12/19/2022
CTE After Dark Pilot FAQs
Page 1 of 2

